
 

Page 1 of 3 

  City of Gardner, Massachusetts 

Office of the City Council 

~~~~~~~ 
CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING 

of 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2023 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 

7:30 P.M. 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS  

 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS 

  

 10889 – Ward 3 Councillor Appointment for term expiring 1/1/2024. 
 

III. OPENING PRAYER 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

V. ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS 
 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable 

requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting.  Any person 

intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith.  All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in 

duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes. 

 

VI. READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 

 Reading and Approval of the Minutes of: 

• October 17, 2022 Regular Meeting 

• November 7, 2022 Joint Public Hearing with Planning Board 

 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

 

 COMMUNICATIONS 

 

10886 – A Notification from the Mayor Regarding Free Cash Appropriation Proposals. 

(Finance Committee) 

 

ORDERS 

  

10887 – An Order Appropriating $4,040.00 from Free Cash to the Engineering Dept.- 

Capital Improvement Uptown Rotary Account. (Finance Committee) 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 3 

ORDERS, continued 

 

10888 – An Order Authorizing the City to Borrow $5,380,000.00 for the Airport 

Runway Improvement Project. (Finance Committee) 

 

IX. PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.  
 

X.    REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES   

 

 FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

 10881 – An Order Appropriating $134,500.00 From Free Cash to FAA Airport 

Runway and Taxiway System – City Portion. (In the City Council and 

Referred to Finance Committee 1/17/2022)  

 

 10885 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 171, 

Thereof, Entitled “Personnel,” to Change Compensation Schedule 1, 

Yearly Salaries, Mayor and City Councillors. (In the City Council and 

Referred to Finance Committee) 

 

 APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 

 

10880 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Leonette Roy, to the 

position of Housing Authority Member, for term expiring December 27, 

2027. (In the City Council and Referred to Appointment Committee 

1/17/2023) 

 

 SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 

10861 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 600, 

Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic,” Section 42, Entitled “One Way Street.” (In 

the City Council and Referred to Safety Committee 12/5/2022; More Time 

12/19/2022, 01/03/2023, 1/17/2023) 

 

10882 – An Application for Motor Vehicle Dealers License, Class II, Gardner Five 

Star Auto Sales, 407 Chestnut Street. (In the City Council and Referred to 

Safety Committee 1/17/2023)   

 

10883 – An Application for Motor Vehicle Dealers License, Class II, Riverside Auto, 

65 Riverside Road. (In the City Council and Referred to Safety Committee 

1/17/2023)   

 

10884 – An Application for Motor Vehicle Dealers License, Class III, Riverside Auto, 

65 Riverside Road. (In the City Council and Referred to Safety Committee 

1/17/2023)   

 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 

XI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
  

XII. NEW BUSINESS  
 

XIII. CLOSING PRAYER 

 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
  
 

Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting.  Not all items listed 

may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion n to the extent permitted by l 



 
        

                    CCIITTYY  OOFF  GGAARRDDNNEERR  
                    MMAASSSSAACCHHUUSSEETTTTSS  0011444400--22663300  

 

                    OOFFFFIICCEE  OOFF  TTHHEE  

                CCIITTYY  CCLLEERRKK  
 

TTIITTII  SSIIRRIIPPHHAANN,,  CCiittyy  CClleerrkk  

JJOOHHNN  AA..  OOLLIIVVAARRII,,  AAsssstt..  CCiittyy  CClleerrkk  

FFAAIITTHH  GGLLOOVVEERR,,  AAsssstt..  CCiittyy  CClleerrkk                                                                                                                              
RRoooomm  112211,,  CCiittyy  HHaallll                                                                                                                                                                
TTeell    ((997788))  663300--44005588  
FFaaxx  ((997788))  663300--22558899    
                             
                                                                                                       

       February 2, 2023 

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, President 

 And Members of the City Council 

City Hall 

95 Pleasant Street 

Gardner, MA  01440 

 

Re: Notice of Vacancy in Ward 3 Councillor Position 

 

Dear President Kazinskas and Members of the City Council: 

 

 Please be advised that the position of Ward 3 Councillor is vacant due to the resignation 

of Councillor Nathan R. Boudreau, which became effective December 19, 2022. 

 

Consequently, the provisions of Section 32 of the Charter of the City of Gardner requires 

the City Council appoint the person from the same ward who received the next highest vote total 

in the most recent municipal election to fill the vacancy for the unexpired term.  Councillor 

Boudreau ran unopposed in the 2021 election. 

 

Therefore, the City Council by majority vote, may elect a qualified resident of Ward 3 to 

fill the vacancy for the unexpired term under procedures determined by the Council. 

 

 Following the Council vote December 19, 2022,  advertisement of the vacancy was 

published in the Gardner News on December 23, 2022, on the City’s website: 

https://www.gardner-ma.gov/CivicAlerts.aspx?AID=1261 , the Gardner City Hall social media 

account,  outside the City Clerk’s Office “clothes line,” where all public meetings are posted, and 

at the Gardner Police Department. 

 

Letters of interest were due to my office by 4:30 p.m. on February 1, 2023. All letters 

received are attached to this correspondence. 

 

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.   

 

       Sincerely, 

 

 

       TITI SIRIPHAN 

 City Clerk 

 

 

                        10889

https://www.gardner-ma.gov/CivicAlerts.aspx?AID=1261


 
        

              CCIITTYY  OOFF  GGAARRDDNNEERR  
                      MMAASSSSAACCHHUUSSEETTTTSS  0011444400--22663300  

 

                      OOFFFFIICCEE  OOFF  TTHHEE  

                CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  
 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
                                                                                                                                  

 

 

 

CITY OF GARDNER 

NOTICE OF VACANCY 

WARD 3 COUNCILLOR 

 

 

In accordance with Section 32 of the Charter of the City of Gardner, notice is 

hereby given that on February 6, 2023, the City Council will elect a resident of 

Ward 3 to fill the Ward Councillor vacancy for the term expiring January 1, 2024.  

Any registered voter residing in Ward 3 interested in being considered for the 

position is required to submit a letter of interest and qualifications to the City 

Council.  Letters must be received in the City Clerk’s Office, City Hall, Room 121, 

no later than Noon on Wednesday, February 1, 2023.  

 

BY THE GARDNER CITY COUNCIL 

Titi Siriphan 

City Clerk 

 

PRESIDENT 
Elizabeth J. Kazinskas 
 

COUNCILLORS AT LARGE 
James S. Boone 
Craig R. Cormier 
Ronald F. Cormier 
Elizabeth J. Kazinskas 
Judy A. Mack 
George C. Tyros 
 

WARD 1 COUNCILLOR 
James M. Walsh, Esq. 
 

WARD 2 COUNCILLOR 
Dana M. Heath 
 

WARD 3 COUNCILLOR 
 
 

WARD 4 COUNCILLOR 
Karen G. Hardern 
 

WARD 5 COUNCILLOR 
Alek Dernalowicz, Esq. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
________________________________ 

 
 
 
 

  
__________________________________
__===============================
============== 

 
 
 
 

                        10889



                        10889



Paul Tassone                        10889



Michael Cormier                        10889



Michael Cormier                        10889



Anthony Richard                        10889



Anthony Richard                        10889



Jeffrey Palmieri                        10889



Jeffrey Palmieri                        10889



Jeffrey Palmieri                        10889



 

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the Council Chambers, Room 219, City Hall, 

on Monday evening, October 17, 2022. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Council President Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Eleven (11) Councillors were present 

including Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, 

Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, and 

James Walsh.  
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 

 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording 

and Public Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an 

open session of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to 

reasonable requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of 

equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending 

to make such recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or 

referenced at the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of 

the meeting minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 

 

READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 

There were no minutes presented. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 

#10807 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Crag Cormier, Ronald Cormier, 

Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James 

Walsh that the following order ought to pass: 

 

DECLARING SURPLUS FOR PURPOSE OF DISPOSAL OF 

 LAND AND BUILDINGS AT LEAMY STREET 

 

VOTED: 

To declare surplus for the purpose of disposal, in accordance with prevailing General 

Laws, all land and buildings at 14 Leamy Street, further identified on the City of 

Gardner Assessor’s Map  as M22-00007-00032, to establish as a minimum amount of 

$51,000.00 to be paid for any conveyance of said property, and to authorize the 

Mayor to convey said land, or part thereof, for such amount or larger amount, and 

upon such other terms as the Mayor shall consider proper in accordance with this 

Vote. 

 

#10808 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 

Ronald Cormier, it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth 

Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Crag Cormier, Ronald Cormier, 

Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James 

Walsh that the following order ought to pass: 

 
 DECLARING SURPLUS FOR PURPOSE OF DISPOSAL OF 

 LAND AND BUILDINGS AT LEAMY STREET 

 

VOTED: 

To declare surplus for the purpose of disposal, in accordance with prevailing General 

Laws, all land and buildings at 177 West Street, further identified on the City of 

Gardner Assessor’s Map  as M27-00023-00023, to establish as a minimum amount of 

$20,000.00 to be paid for any conveyance of said property, and to authorize the 

Mayor to convey said land, or part thereof, for such amount or larger amount, and 

upon such other terms as the Mayor shall consider proper in accordance with this 

Vote. 

 

 

 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#10809 

Councillor Ronald Cormier informed the Council that the finance committee was grateful to 

receive this “educational correspondence” from the Mayor who went into great length 

explaining the process of setting free cash and when it can be used. 

 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Crag Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to 

place on file A Correspondence Regarding Municipal Finance and Free Cash Regulations. 
 

#10810 

Councillor Ronald Cormier informed the Council that the Mayor has provided the 

committee with a listing of disposed properties and an update regarding these sales. 

 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Crag Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to 

place on file A Notification from the Mayor Regarding Update on Sales of City Properties. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

APPOINTMENTS 

 

#10805  

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Crag Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to refer to the 

Appointments Committee A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointments of Election 
Officers for 2022 – 2023 for further study and report. 

 

#10806  

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Crag Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to refer to the 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Appointments Committee A Measure Confirming the Police Officer Assignments to Polling 
Locations for further study and report. 

 

#10811  

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Crag Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to refer to the 

Appointments Committee A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Joshua 
Cormier, to the position of Director of Purchasing/Civil Enforcement, for term expiring 
October 11, 2025 for further study and report. 

 

#10812  

On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it 

was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Crag Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to place on file A Measure 
Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Joshua Cormier, to the position of Tax Title 
Custodian, for term expiring October 11, 2025.   
 

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 

 

#10813 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Crag Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh that 

the following order ought to pass: 

 

  Commonwealth of Massachusetts  
 

CITY OF GARDNER 

STATE ELECTION ORDER 

NOVEMBER 8, 2022 

 

  

That meetings of the citizens of this City qualified to vote in the State Election shall be 

held on TUESDAY, the 8th DAY OF NOVEMBER 2022, FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 8:00 P.M. for 

the purpose of casting their votes in the State Election for the candidates of political parties for the 

following offices and questions: 

     

VOTED: 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

  

 GOVERNOR………………………………………………FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 

 LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR…..…………………………FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 

 ATTORNEY GENERAL.…………………………………FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 

 SECRETARY OF STATE …………………………………FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 

 TREASURER AND RECEIVER GENERAL..……………FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 

 AUDITOR…….……………………………………………FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 

 REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS………………………………..…..THIRD DISTRICT 

 COUNCILLOR…………………………………………………..……SEVENTH DISTRICT 

 SENATOR IN GENERAL COURT………..…..WORCESTER & MIDDLESEX DISTRICT 

 REPRESENTATIVE IN GENERAL COURT…..…….SECOND WORCESTER DISTRICT 

 DISTRICT ATTORNEY…………………………..……………………MIDDLE DISTRICT 

 SHERIFF………………………………………..…….……………WORCESTER COUNTY 

 

 

************ 

QUESTION 1 

 

PROPOSED CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT 

 

 Do you approve of the adoption of an amendment to the constitution summarized below, which 

was approved by the General Court in joint sessions of the two houses on June 12, 2019 (yeas 147 – nays 

48); and again on June 9, 2021 (yeas 159 – nays 41)? 

 

SUMMARY 

 

 This proposed constitutional amendment would establish an additional 4% state income tax on 

that portion of annual taxable income in excess of $1 million. This income level would be adjusted 

annually, by the same method used for federal income-tax brackets, to reflect increases in the cost of 

living. Revenues from this tax would be used, subject to appropriation by the state Legislature, for public 

education, public colleges and universities; and for the repair and maintenance of roads, bridges, and 

public transportation. The proposed amendment would apply to tax years beginning on or after January 1, 

2023. 

 

A YES VOTE would amend the state Constitution to impose an additional 4% tax on that portion of 

incomes over one million dollars to be used, subject to appropriation by the state Legislature, on 

education and transportation. 

 

A NO VOTE would make no change in the state Constitution relative to income tax. 

 

QUESTION 2 

 

LAW PROPOSED BY INITIATIVE PETITION 

 

Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no vote was taken by the Senate or the House of 

Representatives on or before May 3, 2022? 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

SUMMARY 

 

 This proposed law would direct the Commissioner of the Massachusetts Division of Insurance to 

approve or disapprove the rates of dental benefit plans and would require that a dental insurance carrier 

meet an annual aggregate medical loss ratio for its covered dental benefit plans of 83 percent. The 

medical loss 

ratio would measure the amount of premium dollars a dental insurance carrier spends on its members’ 

dental expenses and quality improvements, as opposed to administrative expenses. If a carrier’s annual 

aggregate medical loss ratio is less than 83 percent, the carrier would be required to refund the excess 

premiums to its covered individuals and groups. The proposed law would allow the Commissioner to 

waive or adjust the refunds only if it is determined that issuing refunds would result in financial 

impairment for the carrier. 

  The proposed law would apply to dental benefit plans regardless of whether they are issued 

directly by a carrier, through the connector, or through an intermediary. The proposed law would not 

apply to dental benefit plans issued, delivered, or renewed to a self-insured group or where the carrier is 

acting as a third-party administrator. 

 The proposed law would require the carriers offering dental benefit plans to submit information 

about their current and projected medical loss ratio, administrative expenses, and other financial 

information to the Commissioner. Each carrier would be required to submit an annual comprehensive 

financial statement to the Division of Insurance, itemized by market group size and line of business. A 

carrier that also provides administrative services to one or more self-insured groups would also be 

required to file an appendix to their annual financial statement with information about its self-insured 

business. The proposed law would impose a late penalty on a carrier that does not file its annual report on 

or before April 1. 

 The Division would be required to make the submitted data public, to issue an annual summary to 

certain legislative committees, and to exchange the data with the Health Policy Commission. The 

Commissioner would be required to adopt standards requiring the registration of persons or entities not 

otherwise licensed or registered by the Commissioner and criteria for the standardized reporting and 

uniform allocation methodologies among carriers. 

 The proposed law would allow the Commissioner to approve dental benefit policies for the 

purpose of being offered to individuals or groups. The Commissioner would be required to adopt 

regulations to determine eligibility criteria. 

 The proposed law would require carriers to file group product base rates and any changes to 

group rating factors that are to be effective on January 1 of each year on or before July 1 of the preceding 

year. The Commissioner would be required to disapprove any proposed changes to base rates that are 

excessive, inadequate, or unreasonable in relation to the benefits charged. The Commissioner would also 

be required to disapprove any change to group rating factors that is discriminatory or not actuarially 

sound. 

 The proposed law sets forth criteria that, if met, would require the Commissioner to 

presumptively disapprove a carrier’s rate, including if the aggregate medical loss ratio for all dental 

benefit plans offered by a carrier is less than 83 percent. 

 The proposed law would establish procedures to be followed if a proposed rate is presumptively 

disapproved or if the Commissioner disapproves a rate. 

 The proposed law would require the Division to hold a hearing if a carrier reports a risk-based 

capital ratio on a combined entity basis that exceeds 700 percent in its annual report. 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 7 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 The proposed law would require the Commissioner to promulgate regulations consistent with its 

provisions by October 1, 2023. The proposed law would apply to all dental benefit plans issued, made 

effective, delivered, or renewed on or after January 1, 2024. 

 

A YES VOTE would regulate dental insurance rates, including by requiring companies to spend at least 

83% of premiums on member dental expenses and quality improvements instead of administrative 

expenses, and by making other changes to dental insurance regulations. 

 

A NO VOTE would make no change in the law relative to the regulations that apply to dental insurance 

companies. 

 

 

QUESTION 3 

 

LAW PROPOSED BY INITIATIVE PETITION 

 Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no vote was taken by the Senate or the 

House of Representatives on or before May 3, 2022? 

 

SUMMARY 

 

 This proposed law would increase the statewide limits on the combined number of licenses for 

the sale of alcoholic beverages for off-premises consumption (including licenses for “all alcoholic 

beverages” and for “wines and malt beverages”) that any one retailer could own or control: from 9 to 12 

licenses in 2023; to 15 licenses in 2027; and to 18 licenses in 2031. 

 Beginning in 2023, the proposed law would set a maximum number of “all alcoholic beverages” 

licenses that any one retailer could own or control at 7 licenses unless a retailer currently holds more than 

7 such licenses. 

 The proposed law would require retailers to conduct the sale of alcoholic beverages for off-

premises consumption through face-to-face transactions and would prohibit automated or self-checkout 

sales of alcoholic beverages by such retailers. 

 The proposed law would alter the calculation of the fine that the Alcoholic Beverages Control 

Commission may accept in lieu of suspending any license issued under the State Liquor Control Act. The 

proposed law would modify the formula for calculating such fee from being based on the gross profits on 

the sale of alcoholic beverages to being based on the gross profits on all retail sales. 

 The proposed law would also add out-of-state motor vehicle licenses to the list of the forms of 

identification that any holder of a license issued under the State Liquor Control Act, or their agent or 

employee, may choose to reasonably rely on for proof of a person’s identity and age. 

 

A YES VOTE would increase the number of licenses a retailer could have for the sale of alcoholic 

beverages to be consumed off premises, limit the number of “all-alcoholic beverages” licenses that a 

retailer could acquire, restrict use of self-checkout, and require retailers to accept customers’ out-of-state 

identification. 

 

A NO VOTE would make no change in the laws governing the retail sale of alcoholic beverages. 

 

 

QUESTION 4 

 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 8 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

REFERENDUM ON AN EXISTING LAW 

 

Do you approve of a law summarized below, which was approved by the House of Representatives and 

the Senate on May 26, 2022? 

 

SUMMARY 

 

This law allows Massachusetts residents who cannot provide proof of lawful presence in the United States 

to obtain a standard driver’s license or learner’s permit if they meet all the other qualifications for a 

standard license or learner’s permit, including a road test and insurance, and provide proof of their 

identity, date of birth, and residency. The law provides that, when processing an application for such a 

license or learner’s permit or motor vehicle registration, the registrar of motor vehicles may not ask about 

or create a record of the citizenship or immigration status of the applicant, except as otherwise required by 

law. This law does not allow people who cannot provide proof of lawful presence in the United States to 

obtain a REAL ID. 

 To prove identity and date of birth, the law requires an applicant to present at least two 

documents, one from each of the following categories: (1) a valid unexpired foreign passport or a valid 

unexpired Consular Identification document; and (2) a valid unexpired driver’s license from any United 

States state or territory, an original or certified copy of a birth certificate, a valid unexpired foreign 

national identification card, a valid unexpired foreign driver’s license, or a marriage certificate or divorce 

decree issued by any state or territory of the United States. One of the documents presented by an 

applicant must include a photograph and one must include a date of birth. Any documents not in English 

must be accompanied by a certified translation. The registrar may review any documents issued by 

another country to determine whether they may be used as proof of identity or date of birth. 

 The law requires that applicants for a driver’s license or learner’s permit shall attest, under the 

pains and penalties of perjury, that their license has not been suspended or revoked in any other state, 

country, or jurisdiction. 

 The law specifies that information provided by or relating to any applicant or license-holder will 

not be a public record and shall not be disclosed, except as required by federal law or as authorized by 

Attorney General regulations, and except for purposes of motor vehicle insurance. 

 The law directs the registrar of motor vehicles to make regulations regarding the documents 

required of United States citizens and others who provide proof of lawful presence with their license 

application. 

 The law also requires the registrar and the Secretary of the Commonwealth to establish 

procedures and regulations to ensure that an applicant for a standard driver’s license or learner’s permit 

who does not provide proof of lawful presence will not be automatically registered to vote. 

 The law takes effect on July 1, 2023. 

 

A YES VOTE would keep in place the law, which would allow Massachusetts residents who cannot 

provide proof of lawful presence 

in the United States to obtain a driver’s license or permit if they meet the other requirements for doing so. 

 

A NO VOTE would repeal this law. 

 
 

 It is further ordered that the following polling places are designated by the City Council: 

 
 

  WARD 1, PRECINCT A – Elk’s Home, 31 Park Street 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 9 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

  WARD 1, PRECINCT B – Elk’s Home, 31 Park Street 

  WARD 2, PRECINCT A – Levi Heywood Memorial Library, 55 West Lynde Street 

  WARD 2, PRECINCT B – Levi Heywood Memorial Library, 55 West Lynde Street 

  WARD 3, PRECINCT A – City Hall, Perry Auditorium, 95 Pleasant Street  

  WARD 3, PRECINCT B – City Hall, Perry Auditorium, 95 Pleasant Street 

  WARD 4, PRECINCT A – Police Headquarters, 200 Main Street 

  WARD 4, PRECINCT B – Police Headquarters, 200 Main Street 

  WARD 5, PRECINCT A – Polish American Club, 171 Kendall Pond Road W 

  WARD 5, PRECINCT B – Polish American Club, 171 Kendall Pond Road W   

 

 It is further directed that his Order be posted in accordance with the provisions of Section 63 of 

Chapter 54 of the General Laws. 

 
BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 
TITI SIRIPHAN 

City Clerk 

 

#10814 

On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 

it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Crag Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 

Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to refer to the Safety 

Committee An Application to Buy & Sell Second Hand Motor Vehicles, Class 2 for Sylvester 
R. Anghuy, located at 146 Sherman Street for further study and report. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 

 

#10798 

Councillor Nathan Boudreau informed the Council that the Planning Board did meet and 

discuss this item on October 11th and voted to recommend to the Council to approve the 

proposed zoning map.  

 

On a motion made by Councillor Nathan Boudreau and seconded by Councillor Karen 

Hardern, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 

Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Crag Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh 

schedule a public hearing with the Planning Board A Petition Submitted by 
PrivateOversight, LLC, for an Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 
675, Entitled “Zoning,” per Zoning Act M.G.L. 40A. 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 10 of 10 

 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Councillor James Boone mentioned that he would like to get updated information regarding 

the South Main Street bridge. He has reached out to the Mayor’s office and DPW Director 

and received no response. Councillor Boone also mentioned that many residents have 

received a post card regarding the electrical rates going up. He wanted to mention that 

residents should look at their electrical bill because there are charges for electrical vehicle, 

distributed solar, renewable energy, and energy efficiency. 

 

Councillor Nathan Boudreau recommends that residents look at the DPW website that is 

user friendly to view electrical recommendations and opportunities listed. He would also like 

to thank supporters who have reached out to him regarding recent medical diagnoses he has. 

This is a great community and appreciates the support. 

 

Councillor James Walsh would like to commend Councillor Nathan Boudreau for asking 

question but doing the necessary work to find out the answers. 

 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Nathan Boudreau and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it was 

voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, 

Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, 

Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to adjourn at 7:50 p.m. 
 

 

Accepted by the City Council:  



 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF NOVEMBER 7, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Monday evening, November 7, 2022.  The Joint Public Hearing of the City Council and 

Planning Board, held in the City Council Chamber, was called to order by Council President 

Elizabeth Kazinskas at 6:30 o’clock p.m. for the purposed amendment involves changing the 

zoning of 20 parcels of land along West Broadway from Kendall Pond Road west to the 

Templeton line from Commercial 2 to General Residential 3 on the Zoning Map. 

 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll.  Present were: 
 
Members of the City Council (10) 

 Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, President   

 James S. Boone 

Nathan R. Boudreau 

Craig R. Cormier 

 Ronald F. Cormier 

 Aleksander Dernalowicz 

Karen G. Hardern 

Dana M. Heath 

Judy Mack 

George C. Tyros 

 

 

Councillor James Walsh was absent. 

 

Planning Board Member Paul A. Cormier was absent. 
 

 

President Elizabeth Kazinskas announced Pursuant to G.L. 40A, § 5, notice is hereby given 

that the City Council and Planning Board will conduct a Joint Public Hearing on Monday, 

November 7, 2022 at 6:30 P.M. in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, 95 

Pleasant Street, Gardner, to consider amending Chapter 675, the Zoning Code of the City of 

Gardner. The proposed Amendment involves changing the zoning of 20 parcels of land along 

West Broadway from Kendall Pond Road west to the Templeton line from Commercial 2 to 

General Residential 3 on the Zoning Map.  Information regarding this amendment is 

available for viewing in the City Clerk’s Office, the Department of Community Development 

and Planning (DCDP), or on the City’s webpage – www.gardner-ma.gov. 

 

All persons interested in this matter and desire to offer testimony are invited to attend the 

hearing. – Titi Siriphan, City Clerk. 

 

Members of the Planning Board (4) 

 Robert J. Bettez    

Stephen E. Cormier 

Mark M. Schafron 

Robert J. Swartz 

http://www.gardner-ma.gov/


 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF NOVEMBER 7, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 2 of 2 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Community Development & Planning Director, Trevor Beauregard spoke in favor of the 

zoning ordinance amendment. At the October 11, 2022 planning board meeting, the 

members voted to recommend consideration of the request to the zoning amendment. 

 

Attorney Christine Tree gave a presentation of the proposed amendment to the City Council 

and Planning Board members. 

 

President Kazinskas announced thrice if anyone wishes to speak in favor of the proposed 

zoning amendment. 

 

No one spoke. 

 

President Kazinskas announced thrice if anyone wishes to speak in opposition of the 

proposed zoning amendment. 

 

Jeanine Kia of 30 Deer Hill Road, would like to know how this project will impact their 

water system? She would also like to know if these units are apartment complexes or condos? 

 

Attorney Tree responded that the proposal will be hooked up to city water and sewer so 

there wouldn’t be any additional “draw” from any water available underground. In response 

to the type of units this project will be, they are townhouses with garages. 

 

Louise Caissie of 22 Deer Hill Road, express concerns regarding and “blasting” in the area and 

how it will affect their well water and foundation. 

 

Attorney Tree responded that there will be no blasting. They will be placing slabs. 

 

Dianne Lupaczyk of 17 Deer Hill Road, spoke in opposition. Her concerns are with water 

draining down the road and flooding her cellar and yard. Everyone on Deer Hill Road has 

well water and she does not want to go on city water. 

 

The public hearing closed at 7:12 p.m. 

 

Accepted by the City Council:   
 



Petition for Zoning 
Map Amendment
COM2 to GR3
WEST BROADWAY FROM KENDALL POND TO TEMPLETON

JOANNE TAVANO, MANAGER PRIVATEOVERSIGHT, LLC

ATTY. CHRISTINE M. TREE



SUMMARY

Change would make all parcels conforming, 
protect residential use and homeowners, and 
allow Petitioner’s residential development by 

Special Permit and Site Plan Review

19 Parcels in Ward 3 on West Broadway from 
Kendall Pond to Templeton

Zoning Map Amendment changing existing 
COM2/RR2 zoning to GR3

WHAT

WHERE

WHY



Purpose of Proposed Change

 All parcels are vacant or residential but the zoning is 

commercial

 All improved parcels included in petition are either 

nonconforming or built under variance

 Current zoning presents unnecessary barriers to single 

family owners

 Commercial uses are not compatible

 Petitioner’s project for residential development would 

be allowable by Special Permit and Site Plan Review



LOCATION OF PARCELS FOR

PROPOSED CHANGE



LOCATION OF

PROPOSED

CHANGE
IND2

RR2

COM2



Parcels affected 
by proposed 
Zoning Change

 20 Parcels are 

included in the 
Petition

 Some Parcels are 

subject to a split 

zoning district 

between COM2 and 

RR2

 All Parcels are vacant 
or single family homes



AFFECTED PARCELS, THEIR USE, AND OWNERS

No. Parcel ID Use Owner

1 H-17-72-1 Not Listed Not Listed

2 H17-7-1 Vacant PrivateOversight, LLC

3 H17-12-2 Vacant PrivateOversight, LLC

4 H17-13-9 Vacant PrivateOversight, LLC

5 H17-7-8 Single Family Charles Lemos

6 H17-7-7 Single Family Bryan & Nicole Keith

7 H17-7-6 Single Family Thomas & Dianne Lupaczyk

8 H17-7-5 Single Family Linda Daniels

9 H17-12-9 Single Family Becky Cooper-Glenz

10 H17-12-4 Single Family Daniel Ramos

11 H17-7-4 Single Family Kia Jeanne

12 H17-7-3 Single Family Louise, Daniel, Christopher Cassie

13 H17-7-2 Single Family Monique Aviles

14 H17-7-10 Single Family Thurston Silva, Jr. 

15 H17-3-9 Single Family Joseph Kiarie

16 H17-8-13A Single Family Deborah G. Leabman Revocable Trust

17 H17-8-16 Single Family Barbara & Lee Forgues

18 H17-8-13 Single Family Brian & Joyce Bourgeois

19 H17-8-15 Single Family Mark & Susan Harty

20 H17-3-1 Single Family Global Investments 1, Inc. 



CURRENT ZONING

Current Zoning in the target area

shows how some of the proposed 

Parcels to be changes are in two 

zones, most notably 30 Deer Hill 

Road, 31 Deer Hill Road, and 41

Deer Hill Road.



PARCELS CURRENT USE CONFORMITY
No. Parcel ID Use Property Address Conformity Pre-Change Conformity Post Change

1 H-17-72-1 Not Listed West Broadway UNKNOWN UNKNOWN

2 H17-7-1 Vacant-Proposed Multifamily 0 West Broadway NP SP

3 H17-12-2 Vacant- Proposed Multifamily 0 West Broadway NP SP

4 H17-13-9 Vacant- Proposed Multifamily 0 Airport Road NP SP

5 H17-7-8 Single Family 1022 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-conforming Conforming

6 H17-7-7 Single Family 9 Deer Hill Road Variance Conforming

7 H17-7-6 Single Family 17 Deer Hill Road Variance Conforming

8 H17-7-5 Single Family 25 Deer Hill Road Variance Conforming

9 H17-12-9 Single Family 33 Deer Hill Road Variance Conforming

10 H17-12-4 Single Family 41 Deer Hill Road Variance Conforming

11 H17-7-4 Single Family 30 Deer Hill Road Variance Conforming

12 H17-7-3 Single Family 22 Deer Hill Road Variance Conforming

13 H17-7-2 Single Family 14 Deer Hill Road Variance Conforming

14 H17-7-10 Single Family 6 Deer Hill Road Variance Conforming

15 H17-3-9 Single Family 985 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-conforming Conforming

16 H17-8-13A Single Family 950 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-conforming Conforming

17 H17-8-16 Single Family 957 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-conforming Conforming

18 H17-8-13 Single Family 940 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-conforming Conforming

19 H17-8-15 Single Family 945 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-conforming Conforming

20 H17-3-1 Single Family 935 West Broadway Pre-existing, non-conforming Conforming



ZONING POST

PROPOSED CHANGE

GR3
RR2

COM2



CURRENT ZONING IS DETRIMENTAL TO

OWNERS AND DEVELOPMENT

ALL PARCELS ARE NONCONFORMING OR ALLOWED BY 
VARIANCE 

USES ALLOWED BY RIGHT ARE DETRIMENTAL TO CURRENT 
OWNERS

SINGLE FAMILY HOMEOWNERS FACE UNNECESSARY 
OBSTACLES TO IMPROVEMENTS

LOTS ARE SPLIT ACROSS DISTRICTS



TABLE OF RESIDENTIAL USES

Description of Use RR2 GR3 COM1 COM2

Residential Uses

1.Single-family detached dwelling P P P NP

2. Single-family detached dwelling for personnel required for safe 

operation of a permitted use

NP NP NP NP

3.Two-family dwelling SP P NP NP

4.Three- or four-family dwelling SP SP SP NP

5.Multifamily dwelling NP SP SP NP

6.Hotel/motel SP NP P P

7.Rooming house SP SP SP NP

8.Bed-and-breakfast, including Airbnb SP SP SP NP

9.Senior residential development

a.Detached single-family dwellings P P SPPB SPPB

b.Two-family dwelling SPPB SPPB SPPB NP

c.Townhouse dwellings NP SPPB SPPB NP

d.Independent living units NP SPPB SPPB SPPB

e. Assisted living residence with or without memory care NP SPPB SPPB SPPB

f.Continuing care senior living community NP SPPB SPPB SPPB

10.Open space residential development SPPB NP NP NP



TABLE OF RESIDENTIAL USES

Description of Use RR2 GR3 COM1 COM2

Residential Uses

1.Single-family detached dwelling P P P NP

2. Single-family detached dwelling for personnel required for safe 

operation of a permitted use

NP NP NP NP

3.Two-family dwelling SP P NP NP

4.Three- or four-family dwelling SP SP SP NP

5.Multifamily dwelling NP SP SP NP

6.Hotel/motel SP NP P P

7.Rooming house SP SP SP NP

8.Bed-and-breakfast, including Airbnb SP SP SP NP

9.Senior residential development

a.Detached single-family dwellings P P SPPB SPPB

b.Two-family dwelling SPPB SPPB SPPB NP

c.Townhouse dwellings NP SPPB SPPB NP

d.Independent living units NP SPPB SPPB SPPB

e. Assisted living residence with or without memory care NP SPPB SPPB SPPB

f.Continuing care senior living community NP SPPB SPPB SPPB

10.Open space residential development SPPB NP NP NP



TABLE OF

BUSINESS

USES, PT. 1

Business Uses RR2 GR3 COM1 COM2

30. Mixed use NP SP P P

31. Professional office NP NP P P

32.Professional office or studio use that 

exceeds 15% of gross floor area within the 

principal building of a residence

NP SP P P

33. Medical office building NP NP P P

34. Home occupation P P P NP

35.Convenience retail less than 2,500 square 

feet

NP SP P P

36.Retail store up to 15,000 square feet NP NP P P

37.Retail store over 15,000 square feet NP NP SP SP

38.Bank or other financial institution NP NP P P

39. Coin-operated laundry NP SP P P

40.Laundry dry-cleaning establishment where 

washing and dry cleaning is performed on 

premises

NP NP SP SP

41.Laundry dry cleaning establishment where 

washing and dry cleaning is performed off 

premises

NP SP P P

42. Craft, consumer or personal service 

establishment dealing directly with the general 

public

NP NP P P

43.Undertaking establishment, mortuary, or 

funeral home

SP SP P P

44.Motor vehicle light service, including fuel 

sales, oil and fluid changes.

NP NP SP SP



TABLE OF

BUSINESS

USES, PT. 2

45.Salesroom for motor vehicles, trailers, boats, farm 

implements or machinery, with repair services and 

storage permitted

NP NP NP P

46.Motor vehicle general repairs, excluding body 

repair and painting

NP NP NP SP

47.Motor vehicle body repair, soldering or welding 

shop

NP NP NP SP

48.Car washing or detailing establishment NP NP NP SP

49. Restaurant SP NP P P

50. Restaurant, fast-food, including appurtenant 

structures to provide drive-through or drive-in 

services

NP NP SP SP

51.Restaurant serving food or beverages with live or 

mechanical entertainment

SP NP SP P

52.Wholesale office or showroom, with storage 

limited to floor samples only

NP NP P P

53.Wholesale office or showroom with storage 

permitted on property

NP NP SP P

54.Indoor amusement, fitness, or recreational place 

or place of assembly, provided that the building is 

so insulated and maintained as to confine noise to 

the premises and is located not less than 100 feet 

from a residential district

NP NP P P

55.Outdoor commercial clubs and/or recreational 

establishments or use such as swimming pools, 

tennis courts, ski clubs, camping areas, skating rinks 

or other commercial facilities offering outdoor 

recreation

SP NP P P



TABLE OF

BUSINESS

USES, PT. 3

56.Public or commercial outdoor amusement 

or recreation use but not including outdoor 

drivein movie theater

NP NP NP P

57.Bus station or terminal or railroad station for 

passengers

NP NP P P

58.Transport terminal, warehouse distribution 

facility

NP NP NP NP

59.Contracting business and contractor’s yard, 

including storage in the open1

NP NP NP SP

60.Drive-through or drive-in business and 

appurtenant structures for any permitted use, 

excluding fast-food restaurants and 

convenience retail

NP NP SP SP

61.Animal clinic or veterinary hospital SP NP NP P

62.Pet day-care facility where no animals are 

kept overnight

NP NP NP SP

63. Commercial kennel SP NP NP NP

64.Printing or publishing establishment NP NP P P

66.Licensed massage therapy establishment 

pursuant to MGL c. 112, § § 227 to 235

NP NP P P



GR3 Zoning allows 

residential use with limited 

compatible businesses

And brings all parcels into conformity

GR3

RR2

COM2



PRIVATEOVERSIGHT’S PROPOSED PROJECT:

Project

➢ 45 townhouse style 

residential units

➢ Construction in two phases

➢ Most Phase I units would be 
sold as condominiums

➢ Phase II Units would be 
retained as rental units

➢ Project maintains a 50’ 
buffer with surrounding 
properties

Oversight

➢ Special Permit Required

➢ Site Plan Review Required

➢ Gardner would maintain 
ability to reject, guide or 
limit project

Benefits

➢ Increase of quality market-

rate housing stock

➢ Additional housing units for 
young professionals, small 
families looking for their first 
home

➢ Elderly Gardner residents 
may downsize to a unit with 
less maintenance 
requirements

➢ Development of parcels that 
have been undevelopable 
due to zoning and access 
issues







Thank You!
Joanne Tavano, Mgr Private Oversight

Atty. Christine M. Tree



10886



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10887



10888



10888



10888



10881



10881



10881



10881



10881

















10861



10861



10882



10882

XXXxxXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



10883



10883



10884



10884


	Slide 1: Petition for Zoning Map Amendment COM2 to GR3
	Slide 2: SUMMARY
	Slide 3: Purpose of Proposed Change
	Slide 4: Location of Parcels for Proposed Change
	Slide 5: Location of  Proposed  Change
	Slide 6: Parcels affected by proposed Zoning Change
	Slide 7: Affected Parcels, Their Use, and Owners
	Slide 8: Current Zoning
	Slide 9: Parcels Current Use Conformity
	Slide 10: Zoning Post Proposed Change
	Slide 11: Current Zoning is Detrimental to Owners and Development 
	Slide 12: Table of Residential Uses
	Slide 13: Table of Residential Uses
	Slide 14: Table of Business Uses, pt. 1
	Slide 15: Table of Business Uses, pt. 2
	Slide 16: Table of Business Uses, pt. 3
	Slide 17: GR3 Zoning allows residential use with limited compatible businesses
	Slide 18: PrivateOversightˇs Proposed Project:
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21: Thank You!

